

2001 HOUSE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR
HB 1155

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1155

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

☐ Conference Committee

Hearing Date Jan. 16, 2001

Tape Number	Side A	Side B	Meter #	
2	X	X	A12.19-B28.84	
. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1.				
And the state of t				
	(No Su)	6		
Committee Clerk Signati	ire			

Minutes: Chairman R. Berg, Vice-Chair G. Keiser, Rep. M. Ekstrom, Rep. R. Froelich, Rep. G. Froseth, Rep. R. Jensen, Rep. N. Johnson, Rep. J. Kasper, Rep. M. Klein, Rep. Koppang, Rep. D. Lemieux, Rep. B. Pietsch, Rep. D. Ruby, Rep. D. Severson, Rep. E. Thorpe.

Chairman Berg: Let's open the hearing on HB 1155.

James Fleming: Assistant Attorney General representing the Board of massage.

Basically we would like to expand the board from three members to five. Overall the bill clarifies the definitions you see on page one and two. I think we should clarify the entire act and make it shorter and easier to use if we can. Mostly it's just wording changes such as section three that has a lot of unneeded language that could be substituted with "this does not apply to anyone engaged in a profession for which the license by another board". In section two it prohibits people from engaging in the practice of massage and conducting massage. It needs to be clarified what is okay and what isn't okay. Section four is the main reason for proposing the bill, it would increase from three members to five. The board has no staff and is in charge of inspecting the

Page 2 House Industry, Business and Labor Committee Bill/Resolution Number HB 1155 Hearing Date Jan 16, 2001

members. Three members that are licensed massage therapists would serve three years terms and cycle every year and the two the new members would serve two year terms and cycle every other year. One of those new members could not be a licensed massage therapist. The last member of the board is completely up to the Governors discretion. In section six, there is nothing that states rule making authority so we added some in to view.

Rep Froseth: Is there any requirement about the place of business being licensed?

Fleming: Right now we only regulate the profession, not the place.

Rep Klein: How often is "periodically" inspect?

Fleming: It is not defined but the board is currently working on getting to every year.

<u>Mary LeMay:</u> Current President of the Massage Board right now with only three inspectors we are only at two years but would like to increase to every year.

Fleming: Page 6, addresses nonresidents licensing and clears up out dated laws. Sections 43-25-11 and 12 are to be repealed because they are outdated, we'd like to replace them with "any hearing regarding a disciplinary action or denial of license must be held must be held pursuant of to chapter 28-32". The board is still required to hold hearings.

Rep Froelich: Does the board fix their own pay?

Eleming: Yes. The board receives \$50 per day or per portion of a day. This has potential for abuse. The board wanted the rule making authority to figure out based on what they do now without staff to best decide how to allocate that \$50 per portion of day where they may miss an appointment but not spend the whole day on board activities. Want flexibility in how they should be compensated for their time.

Rep Ruby: I would prefer to see a fee cap in place.

Page 3
House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1155
Hearing Date Jan 16, 2001

Rep Klein: How many members are presently in the organization?

Fleming: Over 400 now.

Rep Klein: What are the fees and renewals?

Mary LeMay: It is \$50 for a renewal license fee and \$150 to take your state exam set by Board Rule.

Rep Keiser: What is the reserve in your account?

Fleming: Roughly \$20,000.

Rep Klein: Is the board audited annually?

Mary LeMay: Every two years by the State Auditor.

<u>Fleming</u>: Fees are currently set by Administrative Rule. The caps on those fees would be a good approach but it also could cause a problem by having to wait two years every time a need arises.

Chairman Berg: What would you feel is fair for a fee cap?

Fleming: We will get together and look at what we can come up with. Going on, the records of all fees paid and usage of which can be supplied at anytime for a ten dollar fee. We would like to add the authority to bring an injunction to enjoin violations of this chapter. Instead of asking the States Attorney to take their time for a class B misdemeanor, we'd like to give the board the option to go to court on their own and bringing an injunction.

Rep Ruby: Why is the fee for out of state licenses struck out?

Fleming: It was took it out in an effort to take out all dollar values and leave it by rule.

Rep Lemieux: On page 10, line 20 Does this mean we can get an injunction if we don't like somebody for whatever reason?

Page 4
House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1155
Hearing Date Jan 16, 2001

<u>Fleming:</u> The board has it in there so that they can get into court with standing so if someone is doing something destructive we can get an injunction before someone gets hurt.

Keith Goline: Director of Sister Roselind School of Massage written testimony in favor of bill

Rep Froelich: What is reflexology?

Goline:

Gayle Hovdon: Self'-employed Licensed Massage Therapist written testimony in favor of bill

Dralinn Koenig: LMT written testimony in favor of bill

Lisa Van Berkom: IMS-Bismarck written testimony opposed to bill

Rep Klein: Does this group have access to an annual report as to what was taken in and what was expended and why?

Lisa: No, I have never seen one and I don't feel that's right.

<u>Fleming:</u> The open records law would require the board to give any records that they have that are asked.

Rep Klein: If you are a member of the group you shouldn't have to go through the long process of going through open records. Do you make it available to your members?

Mary LeMay: Yes it can be available to you at anytime.

Rep Kasper: Did you state that you can not operate out of your home?

Lisa: As I understand it, they can basically come into your home at anytime and tell you that you can not operate in your home. They put a lot of extra pressures on to make it uneasy to operate.

Other states don't add so much stress to LMS and this is somewhat of a push not to work in this state.

Rep Kasper: Do you perceive that you or other members have been unfairly looked at?

Page 5
House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1155
Hearing Date Jan 16, 2001

Lisa: I have no evidence of that, but the bill makes me feel like I have to concentrate on everything instead of giving all my attention to my client.

Rep Ruby: Did you have a problem with the way it was written before or do you have a problem with the changes proposed in it now?

Lisa: Mostly just the changes.

Rich Radspinner: LMT at the YMCA written testimony opposed to bill

Rep Klein: How do you get onto the board?

Radspinner: The Governor appoints and it's unregulated.

Rep Froseth: How many of the 400+ therapists belong to the ND Chapter?

Gall Hoyden: more than 300.

Rep Kasper: Do you receive a newsletter letting you know what's going on, any minutes from the state board?

Radspinner: No., We can call and ask for them but then we have to pay a \$10 fee.

Sharon Doctor: Part-owner of the Institute of Massage Therapy (IMT) I would like this bill put into a resolution study until every voice of massage therapists has been heard and knows what is going on here. If you are not a AMT member you have no voice and it is unfair to those that can't afford the membership fees. I feel a five member board is a good idea but I do not believe that LMT's should be a majority.

Rep Lemieux: Using the licensing fees, is it possible to send out a newsletter?

Doctor: Absolutely, that would be wonderful. All we want is to be informed.

Rep Koppang: What are other states doing?

Doctor: There are 19 states that have state testing but different areas have different rules.

Page 6
House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1155
Hearing Date Jan 16, 2001

Chairman Berg: Are there anymore questions for Sharon? Is there anyone else who'd like to testify? We'll close the hearing on HB 1155.

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1155

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

Conference Committee

Hearing Date Jan 17, 2001

Tape Number	Sid	eΛ	Side B	Meter #
2	>	ζ		15.46-52.80
			A	
Committee Clerk Sigr	ature (leico	lei	

Minutes: Chairman R. Berg, Vice-Chair G. Keiser, Rep. M. Ekstrom, Rep. R. Froelich, Rep. G.

Froseth, Rep. R. Jensen, Rep. N. Johnson, Rep. J. Kasper, Rep. M. Klein, Rep. Koppang,

Rep. D. Lemieux, Rep. B. Pietsch, Rep. D. Ruby, Rep. D. Severson, Rep. E. Thorpe.

Closed Hearing

Rep Klein: Three areas where addressed. 1: The number and type of members on the board.

2: The amount each board member is to be paid, and 3: The amount of fees.

Rep Ruby: Can we change "and" to "up to" in terms of getting paid?

Chairman Berg: That would be compensating the same for a half day of work as a whole day.

Maybe what we could say could be \$62 per day or prorated for partial days.

Rep Keiser: What about maybe changing the language to say "attendance at meetings"?

Chairman Berg: We have a different twist here since the board members are required to inspect,

but also anyone wanting reimbursement from this board is going to have to face their peers.

Rep Klein: We have to allow some leeway for drive time.

Page 2 House Industry, Business and Labor Committee Bill/Resolution Number IIB 1155 Hearing Date Jan 17, 2001

Rep Koppang: Inspectors should be separated from the board. Who regulates this?

<u>Chairman Berg:</u> The state governs the board by setting rules and regulations and we leave it at that. We need to clean up the per diam and set the official duties.

We'll go on to another bill for now and maybe come back to this later on.

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1155 (C)

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

Conference Committee

Hearing Date Feb 7, 2001

Tape Number	S	ide A		S	Side B	Meter #
2		X				4.6-10.5
				_A		
Committee Clerk Signa	iture (at	eid	Del		

Minutes: Chairman R. Berg, Vice-Chair G. Keiser, Rep. M. Ekstrom, Rep. R. Froelich, Rep. G.

Froseth, Rep. R. Jensen, Rep. N. Johnson, Rep. J. Kasper, Rep. M. Klein, Rep. Koppang,

Rep. D. Lemieux, Rep. B. Pietsch, Rep. D. Ruby, Rep. D. Severson, Rep. E. Thorpe.

Rep M. Klein: Supplied final package of amendments.

Rep Ekstrom: I move to accept the amendments.

Rep Froseth: I second.

Rep Lemieux: I move a do pass as amended.

Rep Ekstrom: I second.

13 yea, 0 nay, 2 absent Carrier Rep M. Klein

FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council 02/09/2001

Bill/Resolution No.:

Amendment to:

HB 1155

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

g mil set amanumungungu da mel tid mi antau surrari sersit terriannich, sarrar	1999-200	Blennlum	2001-200	3 Blennlum	2003-2005 Blennium		
ingo-datada dammanaga pi mplamuniman a dak di vara mana ito dimendirak	General Fund	Other Funds	General Fund	Other Funds	General Fund	Other Funds	
Revenues	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$ a	
Expenditures	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
Appropriations	\$0	\$()	\$0	\$2	\$0	\$0	

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

	1999-2001 Biennium			2001-2003 Blennium			2003-2005 Blennlum		
	Counties	Cities	School Districts	Counties	Cities	School Districts	Countles	Cities	School Districts
Ì	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$O

- 2. Narrative: Identify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments relevant to your analysis.
- 3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
 - A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriete, for each revenue type and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.
 - B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.
 - C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, of the effect on the biennial appropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations.

Name:	Phil Relsenauer	Agency: Massage Board
Phone Number:	225-3906	Date Prepared: 02/12/2001

FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council 12/26/2000

Bill/Resolution No.:

HB 1155

Amendment to:

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

	1999-200	1 Blennium	2001-200	3 Biennium	2003-2006 Blennium		
	General Fund	Other Funds	General Fund	Other Funds	General Fund	Other Funds	
Revenues	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
Expenditures	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
Appropriations	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

1991	9-2001 Bleni	nlum	200	1-2003 Blant	nlum	2003-2005 Blennlum		
Countles	Cities	School Districts	Counties	Cities	School Districts	Countles	Cities	School Districts
\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0

2. Narrative: Identify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments relevant to your analysis.

none

- 3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
 - A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

none

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

none

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, of the effect on the blennial oppropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations.

none

Name:	Phil J. Reisenauer	Agency:	State Board of Massage	1

Phone Number: 225-3906 | Date Prepared: 01/09/2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1155

- Page 3, line 28, replace "at least one of whom may not be a massage therapist or an" with "who may not be massage therapists or"
- Page 3, line 29, replace "member" with "members"
- Page 9, line 25, after "duties" insert ", not to exceed a maximum of fifteen dollars per hour and total of sixty-two dollars per day."
- Page 10, line 7, remove the overstrike over "of", insert immediately thereafter "one hundred and fifty", remove the overstrike over "dollars", and insert immediately thereafter "or a lesser fee"

Renumber accordingly

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1155

Page 3, after line 21, insert:

"4. Health spas and similar businesses to the extent the spa or business is performing superficial applications, including salt glows and contouring."

Page 3, line 28, replace "at least one of whom may not be a massage therapist or an" with "who may not be massage therapists or"

Page 3, line 29, replace "member" with "members"

4

Page 9, line 23, replace "fixed by" with "of sixty-two dollars per day or prorated for partial days"

Page 9, line 24, remove "the board"

Page 10, line 7, remove the overstrike over "of", insert immediately thereafter "one hundred and fifty", remove the overstrike over "dollars", and insert immediately thereafter "or a lesser fee"

Renumber accordingly

Date: 2-7-0/
Roll Call Vote #: 1

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES BILL/RESOLUTION NO. Chale have to type Bill Ness Hillon No. //55

House <u>Industry</u> , Business and La	bor			Com	mitte
Subcommittee on		we and reported the work.		<u> </u>	الوارد الوارد الوارد المادي المادي المادي المادي الوارد ال
or Conference Committee					
Legislative Council Amendment Nu	umber _	E	600 oto	d engrages encircles agént applyation à topa de	
Action Taken	Pas	sa	o Amended.	~~~~~~~~	
Motion Made By	eux.		econded By Ekstre	<u>m</u>	محدد ليحيد محمد المحدد
Representatives	Yes	No	Representatives	Yes	No
Chairman- Rick Berg			Rep. Jim Kasper		
Vice-Chairman George Keiser	V		Rep. Matthew M. Klein		
Rep. Mary Ekstorm			Rep. Myron Koppang		
Rep. Rod Froelich			Rep. Doug Lemieux		
Rep. Glen Froseth			Rep. Bill Pietsch		
Rep. Roxanne Jensen		/	Rep. Dan Ruby		,
Rep. Nancy Johnson			Rep. Dale C. Severson		
			Rep. Elwood Thorpe		
				1	
				 	
					السيب
Total (Yes)	13	No	۵		
7	7				
Absent	<u>a</u>				-, -
loor Assignment	M.	KO	in.		
f the vote is on an amendment, brief	ly indicate	intent	:		

Module No: HR-23-2667

Carrier: M. Klein Insert LC: 18266.0101 Title: .0200

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1155: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1155 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

Page 3, after line 21, insert:

"4. A health spa or similar business to the extent the spa or business is performing superficial applications, including salt glows and contouring."

Page 3, line 28, replace "at least one of whom" with "who", replace "a massage therapist" with "massage therapists", and remove "an"

Page 3, Ilne 29, replace "member" with "members"

Page 9, line 23, replace "fixed by" with "of sixty-two dollars per day or prorated for partial days"

Page 9, line 24, remove "the board"

Page 10, line 7, remove the overstrike over "ef", after "thirty-five" insert "one hundred fifty", and remove the overstrike over "dellare" and insert immediately thereafter "or a lesser fee"

Renumber accordingly

2001 SENATE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR

HB 1155

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1155

Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee

Conference Committee

Hearing Date February 21, 2001.

Tape Number		Side A	Side B	Meter#
	1	X		0 to 28.9
	2	X	The second secon	3.6 to 7.1
(Feb. 21)	2	X	(In this passe, Proceeding Space of Fund of the part folion day in a dirty). And the all designation is passed obtaining a continue	4.3 to 7.1
(Feb. 28)	1	yer filfilledirifilmilifirminin filminin, mini gʻigira sqirilm ast yer te tapr filmin a yayari filminin	X	47 to end

Minutes:

The meeting was called to order. All committee members present. Hearing was opened on HB 1155 relating to the practice of massage and the duties of the board of massage.

Jim Fleming, Asst. Attorney General; Counsel, State Board of Massage. Distributed summary of proposed changes in the engrossed bill. Intent: to clarify definitions and statute language, and to increase the number of board members from three to five. Definition of massage relocated.

In pages 2 and, we 3 condensed the list of exemptions. House added amendment on line 22, addressing health spas situation that had unlicensed people doing certain things that might be construed as massages. Page 4 lines 16 and 17 removed, same language as lines 24 and 25 on same page, no change, therefore on the law. Bottom of page 4 specifies board's specific rulemaking authority. Page 6 residence requirement eliminated because subject to legal challenge for discriminating against out of state residents. Lines 12 and 13 removed reference to AMTA standards, the board adopted rules which comply with those standards but wants

Page 2
Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1155
Hearing Date February 21, 2001.

flexibility and don't want to be bound by what that association may decide on the future regarding what the standards should be.

Senator Klein: Will any of the board members be affiliated with any of the massage schools, or be massage therapists?

J Fleming: Current members of the board have no school affiliation, the only requirement is that they be massage therapist, the board expansion will add two consumers. This will allow two members of the board to talk with each other without it being an open meeting, more people to spread the work around.

Senator Krebsbach: How will the standards of the board be set?

J Fleming: The standards are already in place, board wants the flexibility to review all proposed standards without being bound by them.

Richard Radspinner, massage therapist, past president board of massage. I think reflexologists should remain exempt; health spas should not be exempted; regarding the penalties for violation, the board warts to take the violator to court a second time after the injured party has done so I don't think that's fair. The committee should consider making changes to this sections.

J Fleming: To clarify Mr. Radspinner's concerns: reflexologists were over struck because the new language will still exempt them. Health spas are exempted as long as they are working with the skin, it is a narrow exemption. The authority to seek an injunction is if the state attorney doesn't have the time or inclination to pursue the case and the victim lacks the means to do so the board wants the option of being able to protect the public.

No additional testimony.

Page 3
Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1155
Hearing Date February 21, 2001.

Senator Klein: I like the idea of the expansion of the board. The schools of massage have felt Left out, an amendment should be made to include one representative from the schools in the Board. The other member should be a consumer.

Feb. 21/01 Tape 2-A-4.3 to 7.1 Discussion held regarding proposed board composition and amendment.

February 28/01. Tape 1-B-47 to end. Committee reconvened. All members except Senator Tollefson present. Discussion held. Proposed amendment discussed.

J Fleming: I only talked with two of the board members, the other one is out of the country.

They oppose the amendment because of the conflict of interests law. Under this law the school representative would have to step aside whenever a school issue came up, this would complicate things for the board.

Senator Mathern: The board is appointed by the governor.

Senator Klein: How many potential members for the board?

J Fleming: If only administrators, 4; if faculty 20.

Senator Espegard: It is unusual that schools have problems with the board, what is going on here?

J Fleming: Personalities and lack of understanding of how government and boards work.

Discussion held. Senator Klein: Motion: do pass. Senator Mathern: Second.

Roll call vote: 6 yes; 0 no; 1 absent, not voting. Motion carried.

Floor assignment: Senator Klein.

Date: Feb 28/0/ Roll Call Vote #: /

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB /155

Senate Industry, Business	and Labo	r		Com	mittee
Subcommittee on		*****		والمودودة والمقدم المتعارض والمتعارض	**********
Conference Committee					
Legislative Council Amendment Nur	nber _	·		بياد الماري والمارك المارك والمارك والم	
Action Taken Do Pass	as	Enx	rossect		
Motion Made By Servator K		U	conded / m	rt hun	
Senators	Yes	No	Senators	Yes	No
Senator Mutch - Chairman			Senator Every		
Senator Klein - Vice Chairman			Senator Mathem		
Senator Espegard	1/				
Senator Krebsbach	\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \				
Senator Tollefson	A	دا سواليک السم			
		******		_	
				_	
	-				
	 				
Total (Yes) 36		No	0		للسجي
descriptions of an article and article article and article article and article article article article and article art					
Absent	alanian in a di dana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana an	·			The state of the s
Floor Assignment Senato	UKC	eim	n yeri Andron et kanpa et i inne fleska men nem de skrivet en en yeren eine beske fleske ei der blev beske kei		
If the vote is on an amendment, brief	lv indicat	e inten	! !		

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) February 28, 2001 1:15 p.m.

Module No: SR-34-4455 Carrier: Klein Insert LC: . Title: .

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1155, as engrossed: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Sen. Mutch, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1155 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

2001 TESTIMONY

HB 1155

Sister Rosalind Gefre Schools and Clinics of Massage Keith Gosline Director 2 pm France Grander Roman Fargo Campus 1519 1st Avenue S. • Pargo, ND 58103 Phone: 701-297-5993 Fax: 701-297-5994 e-mail: kgosline@sisterrosalind.org Borrolod Barrey Torres 110 2 43-23-02 p. 1 Definitions line 17 WARRY POB Conjundy has who La terrain expends that combined to 9 10 5 - I tension: Make seed no contint exists to be incom the look and Pelbooks y ham. Therefore whole to one had " his for good or North Jumest dely. "

my name is Gail Horning I am a License Misssure Thompson And have been procheng in North 12 11 11 92 years # also am Prosident of the Durch Unkern Achapter of the American Min yethoropy ASS is I am here today represent nyself , as a LMT of this state. = are in fusion of the 1 sed verson of the North DAtola Center Code There was first approved in 1959. I am glad we have it. I find the read of version much easier to read, under the dand it the prisons for dating and time and concern to clean up Alis as a of Myears They don't a good goo. Miss, pas massay Linguis state massage growing rapidly and I feel that more my the state Bours of MASSaye is monthers willy ben Me usi southou no may keep aparough their delives as a bound when every me be of intrest. It also think its ary and Tilda. Alrat come member is a consumer

correlator for maller maller

Food after Nood Ladies & Gentlement
I am Gralinin Kuenig. I have ha a Licenser 3 months

shy of Typass of practicing massage

Jam 3rd Vice President of Executive Board and have Been on the law of legislative committee of the AMTA-NO Chapter of massage. I am speaking on mysell, as a LMT.

This I have been working with this for a couple of years of I myself have studied our Century code to Know it better.

When I first road the Contury code I sound it when conjusing attimes to understand allop it correct a the right form. This was printed in 1959

I am for this 13:11#1155, I feel by what has been used updated & Explains in an Ensier a Not 50 confusing rode of Rules to understand better.

I appreciate the time our Board has done to improve these rules they have done a sojob well done

To bring in Smambers to the Board. I feel it will benefit of them working together with more I deas.

Thank you for your time, for listoning, or your consideration.
I appreciate it!

If House Bill 1155 is passed it will give a 3 member board – appointed by the Governor of ND to protect the citizens of ND against poorly trained massage therapists more power and authority then the Governor and take away the freedom of choice for the citizens of ND to go to a LMT of their choice.

It would also create more government involvement in free enterprise in a right to work state.

House Bill 1155 should not be passed until more then 3 people have a chance to voice their ideas and opinions.

Lisa OPPOSED Homein Butterland, the territory of the Miller White and ething in CAN UNAGULA THE ATTENDED TO THE rima protable state to a tree was I fell that the confirmation to the be thoughod a first the many the -thuraped an explicit from the contraction good to lot of the state of the Many Comment of the Comment Other Miller I. A. Continue the state of the state

Monday on and the many or

Alle will hamitate by to proper hose united total property of the

About the part to a Specie of the following

DESOUNA PIZ. MASSAGE FIRE DANTA

AB. 1156 KINE IN MASSAGE RETARKENTINGETS
CROSS PRES WITH ADMINITED CHATGES
SYL B CH 3 CH HAME POUSINESS
OUT OF POUSINESS AND VINCH
OUT OF POUSINESS FOR MIRSTAGE

MACHUE METABIST - DEGRAPTION
THE SHEW OLDGY MAG DWN POPITED WILL
THE'S BORRD ATTEMPT TO TAKE OVERS
THE'R POPIED OR TOTAL HE'R GRULES
UPON PEELEXOLOGISTS.

400 37 3,8. I am a LMT in ND, it is my opinion, if House Bill 1155 is set in motion, a 3 member board will have had the power to determine not only the health, education and welfare but also where, when and how, the professional LMT's of ND can, will and probably forever, practice, get educated, and simply live in ND.

House Bill 1155 should be set aside; perhaps it should be studied. It definitely should be changed but it should be set aside until all LMT's in the state of ND have a vote or at least know what rules are being passed that will govern them.

I also think a new ND State Board of Massage should be elected one that would consist of 5, just members; 2 LMT's, someone in the medical field, someone in the legal field and a citizen of ND. Life Therapeutic Massage Center Owner: Desiree Faith Bourgois van-Oosting 1424 W. Century Ave. #104 Bismarck ND 58503 (701)222-4591

Committee Members

I feel that as a Licensed Massage Thereapist and a Professional Member of the American Massage Therapy Association, that the laws set forth in House Bill #1155 are in the best interest of all Professional Massage Therapists, practicing in the state.

I graduated from The Desert Institute of The Healing Arts, Tucson Arizona. My school was accredited by the American Massage Therapy Association. I believe that it is in the best interest of the public to have an organization like the American Massage Therapy Assocition to watch over schools and practitioners, that are growing in numbers daily, due the large interest in the field. (regarding 43-25-07)

Representatives from massage therapy schools, attending massage therapists, and reprentatives from the Attorney Generals office, were written to protect the best interests of the massage therapists. After having read and considered all amendments and sections, I feel that it is necessary to have regulations such as, HB#1155, in force to protect practicing licensed therapists, and the public. I also believe that the Governors Board is a large role in the ever growing massage industry and compensation is necessary for the large number of issues they will be dealing with, while leaving their own practices.

As a practicing licensed therapist, I favor HB#1155.

Desiree Faith Bourgois-van Oosting Licensed Massage Therapist.

Prepared by James C. Fleming General Counsel State Board of Massage

Summary of Proposed Changes in Engrossed House Bill 1155

- Clarify definitions and statute language
- Remove language applying to all persons who "conduct" massage
- Remove exemption for YMCAs
- Add exemption for certain activities at a health spa or similar business
- Increase board membership to 5 by adding two consumer members
- Add specific rulemaking authority
- Remove residency requirements
- Remove reference to AMTA
- Change language to allow for delegation of duties to board staff rather than secretary-treasurer
- Authorize board to approve a national exam in lieu of writing its own exam
- Remove recording requirement for licenses
- Remove outdated appeals language and incorporate NDCC ch. 28-32 by reference
- Restrict ten dollar fee for records to requests for copies of certified records
- Authorize board to establish compensation for a partial day and incorporate travel expenses provided for other state entities
- Reciprocity is no longer limited to licensees from states which extend similar privileges to North Dakota licensees
- Authorize injunction to restrain violations of the law

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HB 1155

Page 3, line 30, after the comma insert "one member from a school of massage and one consumer member", after "be" insert "a", replace "therapists" with "therapist", after "or" insert "an", and replace "members" with "member"

Page 3, line 31, remove "consumer"



OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

Wayne Stenehlem ATTORNEY GENERAL

MEMORANDUM

CAPITOL TOWER State Capitol 600 E. Boulevard Ave. Dept. 125 Bismarck, ND 58505-0040 TO:

House Industry, Business, and Labor Committee

701-328-2210 800-366-6888 (TYY) FAX 701-328-2226

FROM:

James C. Fleming, Counsel, State Board of Massage

Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division 701-328-3404

RE:

Proposed amendments to House Bill 1155

800-472-2600 Toll Free in North Dakota FAX 701-328-3535

DATE:

January 17, 2001

Gaming Division 701-328-4848 FAX 701-328-3535

Licensing Section 701-328-2329 FAX 701-328-3535

APITOL COMPLEX tate Office Building 900 E. Boulevard Ave. Blamarck, ND 58505-0041 FAX 701-328-4300

Civil Litigation 701-328-3640

Natural Resources 701-328-3640

Racing Commission 701-328-4290

Bureau of Criminal Investigation P.O. Box 1054 701-328-5500 800-472-2185 Toll Free in North Dakota FAX 701-328-5510

Fire Marshal P.O. Box 1054 Bismarck, ND 58502-1054 701-328-5555 FAX 701-328-5510

Fargo Office O. Box 2665 argo, ND 58108-2865 701-239-7126 FAX 701-239-7129

Attached are the amendments I prepared at the Committee's request to address the addition of two consumer members to the board and caps on the compensation Board members may pay themselves. The amendments include a cap on the bi 11 in section 13 ο£ the (N.D.C.C. reciprocity fee However, in preparing an amendment putting a similar cap on all fees charged by the Board, I realized such caps are already included in current law. Therefore, I believe amendments are not necessary; state law already provides for maximum fees which may be charged by board.

Bill 1155 made number to House а The opponents unsubstantiated allegations against the Board during If any of the committee members are concerned about some of those allegations, Ι would be happy address them with the committee member at any time. I can be reached directly at 328-4889.

Bismarck, ND 58502-1054 Representative Klein asked me to review amendments which have been proposed by Keith Gosline, operator of one of the I have reviewed his proposed massage schools in Fargo. A number are unnecessary given other language amendments. in the bill or in current law and some simply do not make sense. However, some of the proposed amendments would remove the need to have an independent, governor-appointed board of massage by subjecting the decisions of the board to review and approval by a "general assembly" of all state Essentially, board massage therapists. đ١ currently required to protect the public interest instead be protecting the interests of current This would be a dangerous precedent to for set

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee January 17, 2001 Page 2

professional licensing boards, and may require the preparation of a fiscal note.

It is unfortunate that objections and amendments have been proposed by the massage schools at this late date. Enclosed are letters which I sent at the Board's direction to all the massage schools in the state, including the schools operated by Sharon Dockter and Keith Gosline. This letter rebuts the claim that the Board has neglected to communicate with the massage schools.

vkk

cc: Representative Matt Klein



OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

Held! Heitkamp ATTORNEY GENERAL

December 13, 2000

CAPITOL TOWER
State Capitol
600 E. Boulevard Ave.
Dept. 125
Bismarck, ND 58505-00-10
701-328-2210
701-328-3409 (TDD)
FAX 701-328-2226

Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division 701-328-3404 800-472-2600 Toll Free in North Dakota FAX 701-328-3535

Gaming Division 701-328-4848 FAX 701-328-3535

Licensing Section 701-328-2329 FAX 701-328-3535

State Office Building 900 E. Boulevard Ave. Bismarck, ND 58505-0041 FAX 701-328-4300

Civil Litigation 701-328-3640

Natural Resources 701-328-3840

Racing Commission 701-328-4290

Bureau of Criminal Investigation P.O. Box 1054 Bismarck, ND 58502-1054 701-328-5500 800-472-2185 Toll Free In North Dakota FAX 701-328-5510

Fire Marshal P.O. Box 1054 Blemarck, ND 68502-1054 701-328-5555 FAX 701-328-5510

Office
Box 2665
Fargo, ND 68108-2665
701-239-7126
FAX 701-239-7120

Mr. Keith Gosline Sister Rosalind Geffre's School of Professional Massage 1519 1st Ave S Ste A Fargo, ND 58103-1501

Dear Mr. Gosline:

Enclosed please find a copy of the State Massage Board's final administrative rules. These rules go into effect on January 1, 2001. Thank you for your participation in the process of developing these rules. Your comments were very valuable and aided the Board in refining its original proposal.

Also enclosed is a copy of the two bills I pre-filed last Friday on behalf of the Board. The Board invites you to review these bills and consider attending the legislative committee hearings on the bills to express your support for the bills. If you intend to attend the hearing on the bills, or if you have questions or concerns about the bills, please contact me.

Sincerely,

James C. Fleming

Assistant Attorney General

vkk

Enclosures



OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

L'eidl Heitkamp ATTORNEY GENERAL

December 13, 2000

CAPITOL TOWER
State Capitol
600 E. Boulevard Ave.
Dept. 125
Bismarck, ND 58505-0040
701-328-2210
701-328-3409 (TDD)
FAX 701-328-226

Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division 701-328-3404 800-472-2600 Toll Free in North Dakota FAX 701-328-3535

Gaming Division 701-328-4848 FAX 701-328-3535

Licensing Section 701-328-2329 FAX 701-328-3535

ITOL COMPLEX State Office Building 900 E. Boulevard Ave. Bismarck, ND 58505-0041 FAX 701-328-4300

Civil Litigation 701-328-3640

Natural Resources 701-328-3640

Racing Commission 701-328-4290

Bureau of Criminal Investigation P.O. Box 1054 Bismarck, ND 58502-1054 701-328-5500 800-472-2185 Toll Free in North Dakota FAX 701-328-5510

Fire Marshal P.O. Box 1054 Blamarck, ND 58502-1054 701-328-5555 FAX 701-328-6510

Box 2665 701-239-7126 FAX 701-239-7129 Ms. Sharon Dockter
Institute of Myo-Therapeutic Studies
1003 E Interstate Ave Ste 3
Bismarck, ND 58501-0500

Dear Ms. Dockter:

Enclosed please find a copy of the State Massage Board's final administrative rules. These rules go into effect on January 1, 2001. Thank you for your participation in the process of developing these rules. Your comments were very valuable and aided the Board in refining its original proposal.

Also enclosed is a copy of the two bills I pre-filed last Friday on behalf of the Board. The Board invites you to review these bills and consider attending the legislative committee hearings on the bills to express your support for the bills. If you intend to attend the hearing on the bills, or if you have questions or concerns about the bills, please contact me.

Sincerely,

James C. Fleming

Assistant Attorney General

vkk

Enclosures

ARTICLE 49-81

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Chapter 49-01-01 49-01-02

Organization of Board Licensure and Fees

CHAPTER 49-01-01 ORGANIZATION OF BOARD

Section 49-01-01

Organization of Board of Massage

49-01-01-01. Organization of board of massage.

- 1. History and function. The 1959 legislative assembly passed the Massage Registration Act, codified as North Dakota Century Code chapter 43-25. This chapter requires the governor to appoint the board of massage. The board, generally speaking, monitors the relationship and interaction between the licenseholder and the public. It is the responsibility of the board to protect the public against poorly trained massage therapists.
- 2. Board membership. The board consists of three members appointed by the governor. Members of the board serve three-year terms, and not more than one term expires each year.
- 3. Executive secretary-treasurer. The executive secretary-treasurer of the board is appointed by the board and is responsible for administration of the board's activities.
- 4. Inquiries. Inquiries regarding the board may be addressed to the executive secretary-treasurer:

Mr. Phil J. Reisenauer P.O. Box 701 Dickinson, ND 58602-0701

History: Amended effective May 1, 1988; February 1, 1993; January 1, 2001.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02.1
Law Implemented: NDCC 28-32-02.1, 43-25-05

CHAPTER 49-01-02 LICENSURE AND FEES

Section
49-01-02-01 Fees
49-01-02-02 License Applications
49-01-02-03 Expired Licenses
49-01-02-04 Grounds for Discipline
49-01-02-05 Continuing Education

49-01-02-01. Fees. The board charges the following fees:

- 1. To receive a license, one hundred and fifty dollars.
- 2. To renew an annual license, fifty dollars. This fee must be paid on or before January first of each year.
- 3. To retake an examination within six months of the initial failure to pass the board's examination, fifty dollars.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 43-25-07, 43-25-08, 43-25-09 Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07, 43-25-08, 43-25-09

49-01-02-02. License applications. To receive a license as a massage therapist, the applicant must complete an application provided by the board and must include the following additional information:

- 1. Sufficient proof to the board that the applicant has satisfied the education requirements in article 49-02.
- 2. A copy of the applicant's high school diploma or proof of equivalent education.
- 3. A statement from a licensed physician, written in the last year, that the applicant is free of contagious diseases or that the applicant has been trained in taking sufficient precautions to prevent the spread of communicable diseases.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02 Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07, 43-25-09

49-81-82-83. Expired licenses.

- 1. A license as a massage therapist is issued on an annual basis. A license expires on January first if the required renewal fee has not been paid on or by that date.
- 2. Practicing massage after a massage therapist's license has expired constitutes the unauthorized practice of massage. Practicing massage under an expired license is a violation of North Dakota Century Code section 43-25-03 and is grounds for the board to refuse to renew the person's license under subsection 3.
- 3. A license that has expired may be renewed within one year from the date of expiration upon payment of the required renewal fee. The fee will not be prorated for any period during which the license was expired.
- 4. An application for renewal of a license more than one year after the license expired will be considered an application for initial licensure.
- 5. A licenseholder shall notify the board of any change in the licenseholder's name or mailing address, or of any change in the physical address of one of the licenseholder's places of business, within sixty days after the change occurs.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-03, 43-25-09

49-01-02-04. Grounds for discipline. A licensed massage therapist may be subject to disciplinary action by the board for any of the grounds authorized in North Dakota Century Code chapter 43-25, including:

- 1. Failure by the licensee to identify himself or herself before beginning the massage and failure to provide sufficient supervision of massage by students; or
- 2. Commission of one or more acts which indicate the licensee lacks good moral character and is therefore ineligible to be licensed by the board, including:
 - Engaging in criminal conduct involving the client as a victim; and
 - b. Initiating or engaging in any sexual conduct, sexual activities, or sexualizing behavior involving a current

massage client of the licensee, even if the client attempts to sexualize the relationship.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07, 43-25-10

49-01-02-05. Continuing education.

- 1. To renew a license as a massage therapist, the licenseholder must submit sufficient proof to the board of completion of at least eighteen hours of continuing education within the last year, including the date, time, and location of the instruction.
- 2. To qualify as continuing education under this section, the instruction must be offered by a qualified instructor and be directly related to the practice of massage therapy. Unless the course of instruction has been approved in advance by the board, the licenseholder must identify the instructor of the course and describe the qualifications of the instructor, the topics covered during the course, and the total hours for which the licenseholder seeks approval.
- 3. Continuing education by remote means such as telephone, internet, correspondence course, or videotape, will not be approved by the board.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 43-25-09 Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-09

ARTICLE 49-02

EDUCATIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSURE

Chapter	
49-02-01	General Education Requirements
49-02-02	Classroom Instruction
49-02-03	Practical Instruction and Supervision of Students

CHAPTER 49-02-01 GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS

Section		
49-02-01-01	Hours of	Instruction
49-02-01-02	Location	of Instruction
49-02-01-03	Eligible	Instruction

49-82-81-81. Hours of instruction.

- 1. To be eligible for a license as a massage therapist, an applicant must present a diploma or credentials issued by one or more schools of massage which indicate a cumulative total of seven hundred and fifty hours of supervised instruction as determined under this article, or a total of five hundred hours for students who were enrolled in a school of massage on or before April 8, 1999.
- 2. As used in this article, a "clock-hour" or hour of classroom or practical instruction means a sixty-minute block of time consisting of a minimum of fifty minutes of instruction with appropriate breaks.
- 3. The instruction received by the applicant must cover the elements of massage therapy, technique, and practice which include gliding strokes, kneading, direct pressure, deep friction, superficial warming techniques, percussion, compression (pumping), vibration, jostling, shaking, and rocking.
- 4. The instruction received by the applicant must include elements of contraindications, benefits of massage, universal precautions, body mechanics, business, history, ethics, legalities of massage, and professional standards regarding draping and modesty.

5. This article does not apply to applicants who were enrolled in a school of massage on the effective date of this article.

History: Effective January 1, 2001.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-07

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07

49-02-01-02. Location of instruction. The education requirements in this article may be satisfied by instruction provided at a single school of massage or by attendance at more than one school, as long as the hours of total instruction provided to the student are not redundant and satisfy the other requirements in this article. An applicant shall submit a diploma or other credentials from each school attended.

History: Effective January 1, 2001.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-07

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07

49-62-01-03. Eligible instruction. Unless waived by the board for good cause, instruction must be provided within the five years immediately preceding the date of the license application to be counted toward the total hours of instruction.

Nistory: Effective January 1, 2001.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-07

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07

CHAPTER 49-82-82 CLASSROOM INSTRUCTION

Section
49-02-02-01 Hours of Classroom Instruction
49-02-02-02 Eligible Classroom Instruction
49-02-02-03 Required Curriculum

49-82-81. Hours of classroom instruction. The seven hundred fifty total hours of supervised instruction required under this article must include at least four hundred fifty hours of classroom instruction as determined under this chapter. "Hours of classroom instruction" means actual hours in attendance in class under supervised instruction in the presence of an instructor.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-07 Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07

49-02-02-02. Eligible classroom instruction.

- 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section or waived by the board for good cause, classroom instruction under this chapter must be provided by a licensed massage therapist at a recognized and approved school of massage and credit may not be given for prior educational instruction.
- 2. An instructor of anatomy, physiology, and pathology is not required to be a licensed massage therapist but must have earned a recognized postsecondary degree in the field of study in which the instructor is providing instruction.
- 3. A school of massage may give a student credit for prior educational instruction which was provided by a secondary or vocational institution. To receive credit, the prior instruction must have been provided by a qualified instructor within the five-year period immediately preceding the date of the application for licensure. The maximum credit for prior instruction which may be given under this subsection is provided in subsection 4 of section 49-02-02-03.
- 4. Correspondence courses are not recognized by the board under this section.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-07 Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07

49-62-82-83. Required curriculum.

- 1. The supervised classroom instruction received by an applicant must satisfy the following curriculum requirements:
 - a. At least one hundred fifty hours of anatomy.
 - b. At least sixty hours of physiology.
 - c. At least thirty hours of neurology.
 - d. At least thirty hours of pathology.
 - e. At least sixty hours of kinesiology, including origin, insertion, action, and innervation.
 - f. At least, but not more than, ten hours of first aid, hygiene, and CPR. At the time of graduation, the applicant must hold a valid current card certifying the completion of these courses under the instruction of a person who is certified by a nationally recognized organization to provide first aid and CPR instruction.
 - g. At least twenty-five hours of business practices and professional ethics.
- 2. Each hour of instruction may be applied to only one of the above categories.
- 3. To be counted under this section, the instruction must reflect current scientific knowledge and standards.
- 4. The number of classroom hours specified in subdivisions a through e of subsection 1 also is the maximum amount of prior education credits in each subject which may be given under section 49-02-02-02.
- 5. Hours of instruction for programs which measure their instruction in credit hours per semester or per quartor shall be determined as follows:
 - a. For semester credits, fifteen clock-hours of lecture equals one credit hour and thirty clock-hours of practical instruction (clinical or lab) equals one credit hour.
 - b. For quarter credits, ten clock-hours of lecture equals one credit hour and twenty clock-hours of practical instruction (clinical or lab) equals one credit hour.

History: Effective January 1, 2001.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-07

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07

CHAPTER 49-02-03 PRACTICAL INSTRUCTION AND SUPERVISION OF STUDENTS

Section
49-02-03-01 Hours of Practical Instruction
49-02-03-02 Direct Supervision of Students
49-02-03-03 Required Curriculum

49-02-03-01. Hours of practical instruction. The seven hundred fifty total hours of supervised instruction required under this article must include at least three hundred hours of practical instruction. "Hours of practical instruction" means actual hours of providing massage to another person, or receiving massage from a fellow student, under the direct supervision of a licensed massage therapist.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-07 Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07

49-82-63-82. Direct supervision of students. As used in this chapter and in North Dakota Century Code chapter 43-25, "direct supervision of a licensed massage therapist" has the following meaning:

- 1. For a student receiving practical instruction in the classroom setting, the supervising massage therapist must be in the same room as the student at all times during the massage. A massage therapist may supervise up to eight massages at a time (sixteen students) under this subsection.
- 2. For a student receiving practical instruction through field experience or a student clinic, the supervising massage therapist must be present on the premises at all times during the massage. A massage therapist may supervise up to six massages at a time under this subsection.
- 3. Notwithstanding any other provision in this section, a supervising massage therapist must exercise an appropriate degree of supervision at all times. Failure to do so is grounds for disciplinary action by the board.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-07 Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-04, 43-25-07

49-82-83-83. Required curriculum. Before providing a massage to a member of the public, a student must have completed, or received prior

education credit for, at least two hundred twenty-five hours of classroom instruction and at least one hundred fifty hours of practical instruction in the classroom setting.

Mistory: Effective January 1, 2001.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-07

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-07

ARTICLE 49-03

MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENTS

Chapter 49-03-01

Requirements for Massage Establishments

CHAPTER 49-03-01 REQUIREMENTS FOR MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENTS

Section 49-03-01-01

Sanitation, Location, and Conditions

49-03-01-01. Sanitation, location, and conditions.

- The portion of a massage establishment in which a massage is provided, and any waiting room and hallway leading to that area, must be in a clean and sanitary condition at all times. This subsection does not apply when the massage is provided to a person in the person's own home, or when the massage is provided as a public demonstration in a location other than the massage therapist's usual establishment.
- 2. If the massage establishment is also the residence of the massage therapist providing the massage, the massage may not be provided in a bedroom.
- Any mirrors or windows in the massage establishment will be located and covered in a manner to maintain the privacy of the person receiving the massage at all times during the massage and while the client is dressing and undressing.
- 4. A therapist must provide draping and treatment in a way that ensures the personal safety, comfort, and privacy of the client.

History: Effective January 1, 2001. General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02, 43-25-03

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-25-03